
Minutes –DRAFT 
Special Meeting of the St Johnsbury Select board 
March 23, 2016 at 6:00PM-Pomerleau Building 

 
Present- SB: Kevin Oddy, Jeff Moore, Tom Moore, Tim Angell, Jamie Murphy 
 
Staff- Chad Whitehead, Holly English, Joe Kasprzak, Linda Perkins, Mark Bickford, Troy Ruggles 
 
Press- Taylor Reed, KATV, WCAX, News 7 
 
Meeting opened at 6:00PM  
 
Chad Whitehead presented an overview of the Northeast Regional Correctional Facility and 
Caledonia County Work Camp as well as the proposed closure of the facility and an alternative use 
proposed by the Department of Corrections (DOC). 
 
Public Comment:   
 

STJ Resident DH requested the DOC provide information on how many of the 22 jobs that are 

threatened are held by residents of St Johnsbury and what would the economic loss be.   

Jamie Murphy indicated that even if there was an acceptable way to repurpose the facility, there may 

be a loss of the work camp similar to Windsor VT.  

Danville resident DR asked what the cost impact the Work Camp had on the police department 

budget. 

Jeff Moore indicated the Work Camp had minimal impact on the police department but the impacts 

by the correctional facility may be another story. 

Danville resident DR asked about impacts on the school, families, etc. 

Kevin Oddy indicated that DOC data states there is no impact. 

STJ Resident JI stated that he opposed reuse of the facility for other purposes as the reuse could get 

out of control. 

STJ Resident DB stated the rood issue was that the work camp is going away now, Windsor is down 

to 8 or 9 work camp eligible inmates, so the work camp is not the issue at hand.  The Issue is what is 

our position to repurposing the facility.  He indicated he is opposed to transitional housing use or 

housing violent or sex offenders.  The Town still will have the Correctional Facility and be paying 

the price.  He does not like to see the loss of jobs but the economy is currently good and there are 

good jobs available. 

Kevin Oddy indicated that the current proposal does not allow for sex offenders to be housed at the 

facility. 

STJ resident DK asked what leverage does the Town have? 



Kevin Oddy indicated that the State has the ultimate power in the use of the facility and they are 

working to bring out of state inmates back to VT. 

Lyndonville Resident, and Senator Joe Benning stated that he was here to listen.  He is on the Senate 

Judiciary Committee and was paying close attention to what redidents want to do.  He was aware of 

what the work camp has accomplished and if there was a way to have that program remain and 

reach a consensus with the Town. 

Jamie Murphy asked if the consensus from the Town was to shutter the work camp what would the 

State do? 

Senator Benning indicated that the State would support that if it were the Town’s sentiment, but 

would not want to see the facility shut down.   

STJ Resident BH indicated that the work camp program is being reduces, and they are asking to 

repurpose half, what happens when they don’t have the 56 and want to use the whole facility for the 

alternative use.  Based on that he was against any repurposing of the facility.   

 Jamie Murphy indicated that this was discussed at one of our meetings in Montpelier and, and if 

DOC wanted to reuse the other half of the facility they would need to come back to the Town for 

approval. 

Lyndonville resident JG indicated that the work camp assisted with the upright steeple society and 

did a tremendous job.  The new people proposed for the facility would be minimum risk offenders 

and there may be fears, but appears that violent offenders would not be eligible.  He also finds it 

hard to believe that there is not a supply of people that can fill the work camp.  The program is a 

great resource for surrounding towns and not-for-profit organizations. 

Kevin Oddy indicated that based on the proposal inmates could have been convicted of a violent 

felony but were considered minimum custody. 

STJ resident EL asked if one possible inmate population included offenders receiving opiate 

treatment. 

Jamie Murphy indicated that reuse for drug treatment was not still on the table unless the inmate 

was from this area. 

STJ resident DB suggested that there could still be a work crew program without a work camp. 

STJ resident RC asked if inmates released at their Maximum release date were from this community 

of were from other areas. 

Jeff Moore indicated that the DOC’s policy is to release inmates back to their home community. 

Jamie Murphy indicated that once they max out, they are free to live anywhere they want.  

Danville resident and Senator Jane Kitchell indicated that she was here to listen.  This was part of 

the budget proposal, but assures there was lots of discussion with the House and it was still in 

motion.  There is a desire to find something that makes sense to both the Town and DOC, but if 

the Town’s preference is to close the facility she will give it great support for that effort.  One 



question being discussed is if the State should have community facilities or a centralized facility, as 

existing facilities are aging, but this is all up in the air.  There is still more time on all these issues up 

in the air.   

STJ resident DT indicated that 28 VSA 817 said there are to be no violent offenders and now they 

are telling us something different. 

STJ resident DH indicated he has lived in ST J for 25 years and seen on benefit from a prison, but 

seems like a change is coming.  He hopes the people in Montpelier listen to the people of St 

Johnsbury. 

STJ resident SS indicated that it was good to have a group come together to talk about this and 

suggested this kind of public participation about the future of St Johnsbury would be beneficial. 

STJ resident SC asked if when minimum custody inmates were released would there be assistance to 

help with transition. 

Senator Jane Kitchell indicated that placing people in the community helps prepare them for release. 

STJ resident SC asked what the plan to help with transition was 

Sheffield resident MV, and Work Camp Supervisor indicated that he has worked with the work 

camp workers for years, and felt that the program helped teach skills, but felt the Town could help 

by sending more professionals into the program to help develop skills. 

Barnet resident GJ indicated that this all seemed like a chess game, and feels the Towns best 

position would be to allow no change from the work camp at this time, but later there could be lots 

of alternatives that present themselves. 

Jamie Murphy indicated that the decision to explore closing or expanding the facility was not the 

Town’s decision. 

Lyndonville Resident MW, and Work Camp Supervisor, indicated that he worked in Jails for 14 

years with restorative justice, and he has worked with all levels of inmates.  A missing piece of 

current restorative justice is a 1 on 1 working program. If there are 56 more inmates moved into the 

facility he feels comfortable with that and the DOC is committed to doing what is right.  He has 

never met a family that has moved to this community to be near inmates. 

Al Cormier, Superintendent at the Facility indicated that they currently have 11 inmates of the 188 at 

the facility that are from St Johnsbury, and only recently had 1 visitor from St J.  He does not see 

families move to the area. 

Waterford resident TO questioned why work camp program was expanded in 2011, but now they 

cannot find inmates to fill it.  He indicated he feels it should be shut down if it cannot be used as a 

work camp. 

Lyndonville resident ST stated that she volunteers to teach classes at the facility and weather the 

camp stays or goes, prisoners do not go away.  People will move where ever their community is 

when released.  People that are incarcerated outside of the state will move back to their home 

community.  Recidivism research indicates that every $1 spent on education or training saves $4-5 



down the road.  People that receive training are less likely to commit another crime.  If the other 

side cannot be called a work camp, perhaps consideration should be made that it could be a 

vocational center. 

Barnet resident SD indicated that he coordinated a prison outreach program in St Johnsbury with 

the Buddha Center and they would take inmates to meditation and worked with inmates to get high 

school diplomas, but they are not as active in these programs now.  During this time he did not 

know of people that were released and decided to stay in St Johnsbury or have their families move 

to St Johnsbury.  He also indicated that he was troubled by a recent editorial and felt there were not 

many facts.  Based on internet research of 9 communities similar to St Johnsbury, ST J ranked 2nd 

lowest per capita in violent and property crimes.  He does not recommend the town approach this 

from a position of fear.  At one point the town fought for a prison in the community. 

Tom Moore indicated that there is a desire to move Probation and Parole off Eastern Avenue 

STJ resident KA states that he has fear of Montpelier and what their intentions are 5-10 years out.  

The past has shown us that they change things at their own wim.  The work camp is a wonderful 

thing, now the State suggests shutting it down, what will be next?  He is leaning towards letting it go. 

Lyndonville resident GG, Work Camp Supervisor indicated that Probation and Parole includes high 

traffic and having high traffic adjacent to the Correctional Facility is not desired.  The work crew 

does about $1M in work for the Correctional Facility.  If a different classification of inmate was 

allowed to do work within the facility it would be helpful.  He feels the work camp program teaches 

skills.   

STJ resident SW indicated she would like to see the space used in a positive way and people working 

to better themselves.   Residents need to be more involved to get to know.  This needs to be put in a 

positive frame and not fear of what it could be. 

Waterford resident MO indicated that the work camp seems to be getting phased out and something 

else is getting phased in.  The proposal seems to vague. When the current facility was built it was 

built under the assumption that it would be a work camp. 

STJ resident KS indicated that the State of Vermont is trying to save money, and if people think 

allowing a new use will provide benefit they are wrong.  If people think nobody moves here they are 

wrong.  Any change will be negative.  The methadone clinic opened up to serve 25 now it’s serving 

more than 200 and that’s not ok.  The State of Vermont is not looking out for us they are looking to 

save money. 

STJ resident RH indicated that there are 22 potential job losses but repurposing there is no job loss. 

Al Cormier indicated if the facility closes 22 jobs are lost, but if repurposed the jobs are secure. 

STJ resident LH indicated she was offended by the editorial categorizing inmates; inmates don’t get 

what they need because programs are cut. Minimum security and sex offender labels can be 

misleading because courts often drop sentences.  Many inmates are in need of education and 

education is the only thing that avoids recidivism. 



Kevin Oddy indicated that he has a deep respect for what DOC employees do.  The DOC is not 

doing away with the work camp, society is doing this through Government by saying we don’t want 

people in jail anymore.  Instead now they are supervised in the community.  The Town has asked 

what was coming with the proposal but we have not received this yet. 

Lyndonville resident ST asked if there was anything preventing non-work camp individuals from 

joining the work camp, or would that be a housing problem. 

Senator Jane Kitchell indicated that this would require a change in the definition of Work Camp 

Eligible. 

Senator Joe Benning indicated that DOC has had this proposal for some time and there was some 

consideration on that. 

STJ resident LH indicated that using the facility as a substitute for transitional housing seemed 

problematic, but job training could be a great idea depending on the structure. 

STJ resident JE indicated she is not ok with the statute language as presented. 

STJ resident CB wanted to know if the select board heard the members of the community. 

Jamie Murphy indicated that a majority of residents are opposed to the proposal as presented. 

STJ resident CB asked if it was less expensive to house inmates out of state, and if so why? 

Jamie Murphy indicated that when we get inmates back that have been housed out of state they are 

often worse than when they entered the system.  VT is better at rehabilitation, but not cost. 

Kevin Oddy indicated that the Town will need much more detail before a decision can be made. 

STJ resident RC indicated that until details are released the answer has to be no. 

STJ resident DT indicated that no matter what we say the State can do what they want and that is 

scary. 

STJ resident CO indicated that in his opinion the state is on a fishing trip to see what we will take.  

It’s hard to believe they can only find 56 inmates to fill the facility. 

Kevin Oddy indicated that DOC stated they cannot fill the facility and Jane Kitchell agreed. 

The meeting adjourned on a motion by Tim Angell and a second by Jamie Murphy.   


